
 1  
 

 DOVER JOINT TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY BOARD 
 

White Cliffs Business Park Dover Kent CT16 3PJ  
 

 

 
 
 

29 November 2022 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT a meeting of the DOVER JOINT TRANSPORTATION 
ADVISORY BOARD will be held in the Council Chamber at these Offices on Thursday 8 
December 2022 at 6.00 pm when the following business will be transacted.   
 
Members of the public who require further information are asked to contact Democratic 
Services on (01304) 872303 or by e-mail at democraticservices@dover.gov.uk. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
 
Chief Executive  
 
Dover Joint Transportation Advisory Board Membership: 
 
Dover District Council Members 
 
J S Back (Chairman) 
M Bates 
E A Biggs 
D G Cronk 
J P Haste 
M F Hibbert 
N S Kenton 
 

Kent County Council Members 
 
S C Manion (Vice-Chairman) 
D G Beaney 
T A Bond 
S S Chandler 
N J Collor 
D P Murphy 
O C de R Richardson 
 

Town Councils and Kent Association of Local Councils (non-voting) 
 
Mr B W Bano (Deal Town Council) 
Mrs P M Brivio (Dover Town Council) 
Mr P Carter (Sandwich Town Council) 
Mr K Gowland (Kent Association of Local Councils) 
Mr A P Minns (Kent Association of Local Councils) 
 

 

 
 
 
 
AGENDA 

Public Document Pack



 

2 

  
1    APOLOGIES   

 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

   
2    APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS   

 
 To note appointments of Substitute Members. 

  
3    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Page 4) 

 
 To receive any declarations of interest from Members in respect of business to be 

transacted on the agenda.  
  

4    MINUTES (Pages 5-8) 
 

 To confirm the attached minutes of the meeting of the Board held on 30 June 2022. 
 
 
PART A 
  

5    BUS SERVICES (Pages 9-14) 
 

 1. To consider the attached report from KCC Highways responding to a 1,200-
signature petition received regarding bus services  
 

2. To receive comments from Stagecoach (attendee(s) to be confirmed) 
 

3. Speakers - Cllr Linda Keen (District Councillor for Aylesham, Eythorne &                
                  Shepherdswell) 

                              Cllr Malcolm Ledger (Chairman of Eythorne Parish   
                              Council) 
                              Cllr Jamie Pout (Chairman of Aylesham Parish Council) 
 

4. Members’ questions and debate 
  

6    HIGHWAYS FORWARD WORKS PROGRAMME 2022/23 AND 2023/24 (Pages 
15-34) 
 

 To note the attached report of the Director of Highways and Transportation, Kent 
County Council.   
 

 
Access to Meetings and Information 
 
 Members of the public are welcome to attend meetings of the Council, its 

Committees and Sub-Committees.  You may remain present throughout them except 
during the consideration of exempt or confidential information. 

 
 All meetings are held at the Council Offices, Whitfield unless otherwise indicated on 

the front page of the agenda.  There is step free access via the Council Chamber 
entrance and an accessible toilet is available in the foyer.  In addition, there is a PA 
system and hearing loop within the Council Chamber. 

 
 Agenda papers are published five clear working days before the meeting.  



 

3 

Alternatively, a limited supply of agendas will be available at the meeting, free of 
charge, and all agendas, reports and minutes can be viewed and downloaded from 
our website www.dover.gov.uk.  Minutes will be published on our website as soon as 
practicably possible after each meeting.  All agenda papers and minutes are 
available for public inspection for a period of six years from the date of the meeting.  

 
 In order to facilitate the broadcast of meetings there have been cameras set up in the 

Council Chamber that communicate with Microsoft Teams Live. This enables 
meetings held in the Council Chamber to be broadcast for public viewing through the 
Council’s website.  
 
The meetings in which these cameras will be used include meetings of: (a) Council; 
(b) Cabinet; (c) Dover Joint Transportation Advisory Board; (d) General Purposes 
Committee; (e) Electoral Matters Committee; (f) Governance Committee; (g) Planning 
Committee; (h) General Purposes Committee and (i) Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. Only agenda items open to the press and public to view will be 
broadcast. 
 

 These recordings will be retained for 30 days from the date of the meeting. The 
recordings will be uploaded to YouTube as soon as practicable after the day of the 
meeting. In normal circumstances this would be within 2 working days of the meeting. 
However, there may be circumstances where it will take longer. The recordings can 
be viewed on the Council’s YouTube Channel - Council meetings - YouTube 

 
 Members of the Board may receive confidential information relating to personal data 

as part of an item of an exempt or confidential business on the agenda. It is each 
Member’s responsibility to ensure that this information is handled securely and 
confidentially as required under data protection legislation. This information must only 
be retained for as long as necessary and when no longer required disposed of via a 
shredder or the Council’s secure disposal arrangements.  
 
For further information about how this information should be processed, please view 
the Council’s Data Protection Policy and Appropriate Policy Document at 
www.dover.gov.uk/Corporate-Information/PDF/Data-Protection-Policy.pdf  

 
 Agenda papers are published five clear working days before the meeting.  

Alternatively, a limited supply of agendas will be available at the meeting, free of 
charge, and all agendas, reports and minutes can be viewed and downloaded from 
our website www.dover.gov.uk.  Minutes will be published on our website as soon as 
practicably possible after each meeting.  All agenda papers and minutes are 
available for public inspection for a period of six years from the date of the meeting.   

 
 If you require any further information about the contents of this agenda or your right 

to gain access to information held by the Council please contact Democratic 
Services, democraticservices@dover.gov.uk, telephone: (01304) 872303 or email: 
democraticservices@dover.gov.uk for details. 

 
Large print copies of this agenda can be supplied on request. 
 

https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PLjCIS-fRB2ARPws4_Jb_pBL0xvkE5fC6Y
http://www.dover.gov.uk/Corporate-Information/PDF/Data-Protection-Policy.pdf


Declarations of Interest 
 
 

Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) 

Where a Member has a new or registered DPI in a matter under consideration they must 

disclose that they have an interest and, unless the Monitoring Officer has agreed in advance 

that the DPI is a 'Sensitive Interest', explain the nature of that interest at the meeting. The 

Member must withdraw from the meeting at the commencement of the consideration of any 

matter in which they have declared a DPI and must not participate in any discussion of, or 

vote taken on, the matter unless they have been granted a dispensation permitting them to 

do so. If during the consideration of any item a Member becomes aware that they have a 

DPI in the matter they should declare the interest immediately and, subject to any 

dispensations, withdraw from the meeting. 

Other Significant Interest (OSI) 

Where a Member is declaring an OSI they must also disclose the interest and explain the 

nature of the interest at the meeting. The Member must withdraw from the meeting at the 

commencement of the consideration of any matter in which they have declared a OSI and 

must not participate in any discussion of, or vote taken on, the matter unless they have been 

granted a dispensation to do so or the meeting is one at which members of the public are 

permitted to speak for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or giving 

evidence relating to the matter. In the latter case, the Member may only participate on the 

same basis as a member of the public and cannot participate in any discussion of, or vote 

taken on, the matter and must withdraw from the meeting in accordance with the Council's 

procedure rules. 

Voluntary Announcement of Other Interests (VAOI) 

Where a Member does not have either a DPI or OSI but is of the opinion that for 

transparency reasons alone s/he should make an announcement in respect of a matter 

under consideration, they can make a VAOI. A Member declaring a VAOI may still remain at 

the meeting and vote on the matter under consideration. 

Note to the Code:  

Situations in which a Member may wish to make a VAOI include membership of outside 

bodies that have made representations on agenda items; where a Member knows a person 

involved, but does not have a close association with that person; or where an item would 

affect the well-being of a Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc. but not his/her 

financial position. It should be emphasised that an effect on the financial position of a 

Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc OR an application made by a Member, 

relative, close associate, employer, etc would both probably constitute either an OSI or in 

some cases a DPI. 

4

Agenda Item No 3



 

Minutes of the meeting of the DOVER JOINT TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY 
BOARD held at the Council Offices, Whitfield on Thursday, 30 June 2022 at 6.00 
pm. 
 
Present: 
 
Chairman: Councillor J S Back 

 
Councillors: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Also present: 
  

M Bates 
T A Bond 
N J Collor 
D G Cronk 
J P Haste 
M F Hibbert 
N S Kenton 
S C Manion 
O C de R Richardson 
 
Mr R S Walkden (Dover Town Council) 
Mr P Carter (Sandwich Town Council) 
Mr K Gowland (Kent Association of Local Councils) 
  

Officers: Highway Manager (Dover) (Kent County Council Highways) 
(attended remotely) 
Head of Commercial Services 
Transport and Parking Services Manager 
Parking Operations Manager 
Democratic Services Officer 
 

90 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENT  
 
The Chairman announced that Item 12 (Proposed Revision of Zone H Residents’ 
Permit Parking Scheme) had been withdrawn from the agenda. 
 

91 APOLOGIES  
 
It was noted that apologies for absence had been received from District Councillor E 
A Biggs, Dover Town Councillor P M Brivio and Mr A P Minns (Kent Association of 
Local Councils). 
 

92 APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS  
 
It was noted that Dover Town Councillor R S Walkden was the nominated substitute 
for Councillor P M Brivio.  
  

93 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest.  
 

94 MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 10 March 2022 were approved as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

95 RECEIPT OF PETITION IN RESPECT OF ST LEONARD'S ROAD, DEAL  

Public Document Pack

5

Agenda Item No 4



 
Mr Anthony Hoad presented a petition in respect of St Leonard’s Road, Deal which 
was received by the Chairman. 
 

96 HIGHWAY FORWARD WORKS PROGRAMME 2021/22 AND 2022/23  
 
The Highway Manager (Dover) (HM) presented the report.  She advised that the 
works detailed in Appendix A had all been completed save for surface dressing at 
Eastry on the Sandwich bypass.  Referring to Appendix J, she advised that a lot of 
the works would involve road closures and inevitably cause some disruption.   
  
In response to Councillor D G Cronk, the HM confirmed that she was aware of the 
issues at The Strand, Walmer the previous weekend.  She understood that the work 
had been rescheduled due to the weather and had clashed with the Clifftop 
Challenge.  The re-tarmacking work had now been completed.   In respect of 
charging points in garages, she advised that Kent County Council’s focus was to 
install charging points in car parks and off street.   She was not aware of legislation 
that permitted charging spaces to be allocated to specific houses nor of discussions 
being held with Shell or BP.   She clarified that when tarmacking was carried out, 
the road would be left for at least 14 days (with loose material on top) before any 
new lines were marked out.    She promised to follow this up. 
  
In response to Councillor P Carter, she undertook to find out timings in respect of 
the externally funded schemes listed in Appendix D for Sandwich.  Councillor J P 
Haste mentioned the entrance to new housing at the top end of Coombe Valley 
Road near the roundabout which needed resurfacing.  He also mentioned several 
serious accidents having occurred at MacDonald Road caused by cars parked on 
corners obscuring visibility.  The HM advised that the resurfacing of the entrance 
would normally be the developer’s responsibility but agreed to check.   With regards 
to MacDonald Road, she commented that Blue Badge holders had discretion to 
park on double yellow lines but were still expected to park safely.  She suggested 
that accidents caused by irresponsible parking should be reported to the police.   
  
The HM undertook to send Councillor T A Bond the dates of road closures at St 
Leonards Road, Allenby Avenue, Park Road, etc in Deal.   It would be a rolling 
programme of closures and they would not all be closed at the same time and for 25 
days.  She confirmed that she had received an e-mail from Councillor M F Hibbert 
which would require a long reply.   
  
RESOLVED: (a) That the Highway Manager be requested to: (a) advise further  

regarding electric vehicle charging points, resurfacing of 
development entrance in Coombe Valley Road, road closures in Deal 
and externally funded schemes in Sandwich in Appendix D of the 
report; and (b) follow up the re-lining of The Strand, Walmer.  

  
                      (b) That the report be noted.    

  
97 BRIDGESIDE, DEAL: PROPOSED EXTENSION OF ZONE P RESIDENTS' 

PERMIT PARKING SCHEME  
 
The Transport and Parking Services Manager introduced the report which outlined 
proposals to extend a residents’ permit parking scheme at Bridgeside, Deal.   The 
proposals had been the subject of informal consultation and formal consultation 
would now be undertaken if recommended by the Board.   She clarified that permit 
charges would depend on a vehicle’s emissions rating such that the charge for an 

6



electric vehicle would be the lowest at £35 per annum. Some Members expressed 
reservations about this model of charging which was unfair to residents when 
visitors were not charged on the basis of their vehicles’ emissions.   The Head of 
Commercial Services advised that emissions-based charging had already been 
agreed by Cabinet.  However, it would be kept under review and was due to be 
discussed later in the year. 
  
RESOLVED:   (a) That it be recommended that the existing Zone P residents’  

permit parking scheme for Bridgeside, Deal be extended to various 
other roads in the area, including Sutherland Road, Albert Road, 
Church Path, Middle Deal Road and Matthews Close, and taken to 
formal consultation.   

 
98 SANDWICH: PROPOSED REVISION OF RESIDENTS' PARKING PERMIT 

PARKING SCHEME TIMES  
 
The Parking Operations Manager (POM) advised Members that the proposal to 
change the times of the Zone J residents’ permit parking scheme in Sandwich, as 
set out in the report, was being withdrawn following informal consultation.  The 
proposal would not be progressed due to opposition from a majority of residents.   
  
RESOLVED:   That it be recommended that the proposal to change the times of the  

Zone J residents’ permit parking scheme in Sandwich is not 
progressed.     

 
99 DORMAN AVENUE SOUTH, AYLESHAM: PROPOSED REVISION OF DOUBLE 

YELLOW LINE PARKING RESTRICTIONS  
 
The POM introduced the report, advising that the proposal had come about as a 
result of concerns raised by Aylesham Parish Council and local residents regarding 
vehicles parking inappropriately.   
  
RESOLVED: That it be recommended: 
  

(a)  That the existing double yellow lines parking restrictions be 
extended to allow safer entry/egress from Dorman Avenue South 
and Market Place. 

  
(b)   That corner protection restrictions on Milner Crescent and Hyde    

Place be extended and installed on to Dorman Avenue South. 
  

(c)  That double yellow lines be installed at the entrance to 
Greyhound Gardens.  

 
100 LONDON ROAD, RIVER: PROPOSED REVISION OF CURRENT PARKING AREA  

 
The POM presented the report, confirming that the proposal would not affect the 
zig-zag lines next to the zebra crossing. 
  
RESOLVED: It was agreed to recommend that the proposed ‘Loading Only’ bay  

          restriction be introduced.           
 

101 PROPOSED REVISION OF RESIDENTS' PERMIT PARKING SCHEME TO 
INSTALL CASHLESS PAY FOR PARKING IN COOMBE VALLEY ROAD, 
MACDONALD ROAD AND LAMBTON ROAD, DOVER  

7



 
The POM presented the report which outlined proposals to introduce cashless 
payment for on-street parking in Coombe Valley, MacDonald and Lambton Roads 
which were situated opposite Buckland Hospital in Dover.  Councillor Bond 
expressed concerns that, due to the location, it was likely to be the elderly who were 
more unfamiliar with cashless parking that would be most affected by the proposal.  
The POM advised that there was the option of using the hospital’s Pay and Display 
car park for those without a mobile phone or unfamiliar with cashless parking.  
Councillor N J Collor commented that the proposed parking charges were 
considerably cheaper than the hospital car park so would not discourage visitors 
from parking in residents’ spaces.   He hoped there would be an increase in parking 
enforcement in that area to tackle the problem.   
  
The POM reassured Members that the parking enforcement team was doing all it 
could to ensure that all areas were patrolled.  However, the team was currently 
short of three staff.  The Transport and Parking Services Manager advised that the 
Council was in the process of recruiting more staff but there appeared to be a 
nationwide problem.   Councillor M Bates advised that payment could be made 
using any type of mobile phone.  Officers were aware of the disparity between the 
on-street and hospital car park charges and would review them once the proposal 
was in operation.  He clarified that the proposal would be subject to formal 
consultation.   In response to a query from Councillor Cronk, the POM clarified that 
there would be no machines and that payment could only be made over the phone.   
  
RESOLVED:   That it be recommended that Cashless Parking (RingGo) be  

introduced into the existing residents’ permit parking scheme in 
Coombe Valley Road, MacDonald Road and Lambton Road.  

 
102 DOVER: PROPOSED REVISION OF RESIDENTS' PERMIT PARKING SCHEME 

TIMES  
 
The POM presented the report which detailed proposals to change the restriction 
times of Zones A to G residents’ permit parking schemes.   The proposal had been 
the subject of informal consultation and, if recommended by the Board, would now 
undergo formal consultation.   
  
RESOLVED: That it be recommended that the existing Zones A to G residents’  
                      permit parking schemes restriction times be changed from 8.30am-  
                      5.30pm to 7.00am-8.00pm and taken to formal consultation. 
 
 
The meeting ended at 6.53 pm. 

8



 

 

Dover Joint Transportation Advisory 
Board 
 

December20
22 

 

Petition - Save Rural Bus Routes in Dover District 
 

Decision Making Authority N /A (Stagecoach commercial bus changes) 

Lead Director Phil Lightowler, Interim Director of Highways and 
Transport 

Lead Head of Service Phil Lightowler, Head of Public Transport 

Lead Officer and Report Author Steve Pay, Public Transport Planning and Operations 
Manager 

Wards and County Divisions 
affected 

Various 

Which Member(s) requested this 
report? 

Committee (Petition received of between 1000-2500 
signatures 

  
This report makes the following recommendations: for information only  
 
 

  
  
Timetable 
Meeting Date 
Dover Joint Transportation Advisory Board 8 December 2022 

9

Agenda Item No 5



 

 

Petition - Save Rural Bus Routes in Dover District 
 

1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 

1.1 Report provided in response to a petition received with 1200 signatures “Save Rural 
Bus Routes in Dover” due to be debated at Dover Joint Transportation Advisory Board.
  

 
2. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
2.1   The report provides the operating and commercial context affecting the bus industry 

across the UK including; the impact of the pandemic on bus use, skilled driver 
shortage, increased fuel cost and other overheads and places this in a  local context 
specifically identifying the impacts on services operating within Dover District.   

 
 
 
3. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 

 
3.1  Background 
 

3.1.1   The pandemic has had a profound use on Public Transport across the UK.  
Since the UK went into lockdown in March 2020, a combination of home 
working, school closures and guidance to avoid the use of Public Transport 
has resulted in a volatile period of few passenger journeys and operators and 
local authorities having to react to Public Health Guidance and changing 
passenger demands.  

 
3.1.2   Bus use in Kent, as with rest of the UK has only partially recovered and 

currently it is estimated that use of buses stands at around 70% of pre-
pandemic levels, with the use in the off-peak being closer to half of what it 
was prior to the pandemic.   At the same time, bus operators are facing other 
financial and operational pressures notably in respect of increasing fuel and 
driver costs and a shortage of skilled drivers and engineering staff.     

 
3.1.3  Throughout the pandemic and to date, levels of service are only being 

sustained because of financial support being provided by Government, 
currently in the form of Local Transport Fund (LTF) and the continued 
payment of concessionary travel (the older persons bus pass and KCC 
Travel Saver) reimbursement assuming pre-pandemic levels of use.       

 
3.1.4   Concessionary Travel Payments are now being made on a sliding scale 

reducing them to reflect actual use, thus reducing the income received by 
operators.   At the same time LTF finishes at the end September and linked 
to this, operators have been tasked by the Department for Transport with 
reviewing their network and reducing it to a sustainable level taking account 
of all factors, notably the end of support funding.   

 
 
 
 

10



 

 

 
Commercial response by operators  

 
3.2.1 Bus services operate in a de-regulated, privatised environment where 

operators match service levels and fares to demand and costs in order that 
services are sustainable.  They are not obliged to provide any service or 
journey empowering them to react to changes to the commercial or operating 
environment.    

 
3.2.2 To change or cancel a bus service, operators must follow and administrative 

(registration) process which gives advance notice to the Department for 
Transport and to the Local Transport Authority.    KCC are therefore starting to 
see the registrations relating to service changes linked the LTF network review 
which are likely to come into effect around October.  A summary of all major 
Stagecoach changes in the Dover District is attached as an appendix.  

 
KCC position 
 
3.3.1  The financial support of bus journey is a discretionary activity and as a 

consequence, in recent years many Local Transport Authorities have reduced 
or stopped funding this area.   KCC has managed to protect its supported bus 
network and funding during this time but the pressures on the budget mean 
that the Public Transport team are currently working to deliver a range of 
savings which include a £2.2m reduction in the supported bus budget.    

 
3.3.2 Ordinarily, in response to the withdrawal of a service by a bus operator, KCC 

would consider if funding could be provided to sustain or replace it, if 
necessary cancelling the funding of something with lesser priority to afford it.   
However, the reduction in the bus budget is such that there is not the capacity 
to consider this and any arguably less vital services are also already proposed 
for withdrawal.    

 
3.3.2 As such, KCC are not able to directly intervene and replace services that are 

being affected. The Public Transport team are working with operators to 
identify opportunities for them to provide replacement services and this is 
arriving at solutions in some instances.   However, the current climate means 
that alternative services will not be possible in all instances and ultimately the 
majority of services identified for withdrawal will stop without direct 
replacement.   KCC are maintaining up to date information about all changes 
and any alternative solutions on the kent.gov web pages. 

 
www.kent.gov.uk/roads-and-travel/travelling-around-kent/bus-travel/bus-
services-in-kent  

 
 

4.0 Process for requests  
 

 

11

http://www.kent.gov.uk/roads-and-travel/travelling-around-kent/bus-travel/bus-services-in-kent
http://www.kent.gov.uk/roads-and-travel/travelling-around-kent/bus-travel/bus-services-in-kent
http://www.kent.gov.uk/roads-and-travel/travelling-around-kent/bus-travel/bus-services-in-kent


 

 

 
5 REPORT APPENDICES 
 

A. Summary of Dover Stagecoach Service Changes 
 
 
6       BACKGROUND PAPERS  
 

N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12



 

 

 
 
Appendix A. Summary of Dover Service Changes 
 

12 Deal Canterbury Revised Timetable 

15 Dover Canterbury Revised Timetable 

43 Canterbury Sandwich Revised Timetable 

61 Dover Whitfield Revised Timetable 

62 Dover Dover Revised Timetable 

63 Dover Dover Revised Timetable 

82 Kingsdown Mill Hill Withdraw 

83 Deal Walmer Withdraw 

84 Deal Sandown Withdraw 

88/88A Sandwich Dover Withdraw 

90 Deal Aycliffe Withdraw 

92/92A Dover Elvington Withdraw 

93 Deal Dover Revised Timetable 

95 Aylesham Sandwich Tech Revised Timetable 

96 Chillenden Dover Tower Hamlets Withdraw 

80 Dover Sandwich Tech Revised Timetable 

89 Canterbury Dover Revised Timetable 

64 Aycliffe River New route covering parts of 61 and 90/91/92 

13



 

 

980 Aylesham Dover Tower Hamlets Renumber of 89B/89X 
 

14



To:              Dover Joint Transportation Advisory Board  
 
By:              KCC Highways and Transportation 
 
Date:    8 December 2022 
 
Subject:    Highways Forward Works Programme: 2022/23 and 2023/24 
 
Classification:  Information Only  
 
 
Summary: This report updates Members on the identified schemes approved for 
construction. 
 
 
1. Introduction  
 
This report provides an update and summarises schemes that have been programmed for 
delivery in 2022/23 and 2023/24. 
 
In summer 2021 Kent County Council published a Highways Asset Management Plan 
(HAMP), which included, as Appendix C, a five-year Forward Works Programme for the 
years 2021/22 to 2025/26.  this reflected the need to move away from annual programmes 
and to consider asset management activity a multi-year one. 
 
The first part of the programme concerned the two years 2021/22 - 2022/23. Around half of 
the schemes included in that programme have now been delivered, and as a result we have 
now produced a new programme covering the years 2022/23 - 2023/24. As before, most of 
the sites included in this programme have already been verified by our engineers.  
 
The second part of our programme related to years three to five of our five-year programme 
(2023/24 - 2025/26). This too needs revision to cover the years 2024/25 – 2026/27, and the 
work required to do this is currently in progress. As before, our new years three to five 
programme will be largely based on data from our asset management systems, so may be 
subject to more changes as the schemes are verified. 
 
This programme is subject to regular review and may change for a number of reasons 
including budget allocation, contract rate changes, inflationary pressures such as material 
price increases, conflicting works, and to reflect our changing priorities. The programme and 
extent of individual sites within the programme may also be revised following engineering 
assessment during the design phase, and additional sites may be added or others advanced 
if their condition deteriorates rapidly so that we need to react in order to keep the highway in 
a safe and serviceable condition. 
 
Further information about how we manage our highway infrastructure, including our county-
wide five-year forward works programme, may be found on our website: 
 https://www.kent.gov.uk/about-the-council/strategies-and-policies/transport-and-highways-
policies/managing-highway-infrastructure 
 
In addition to planned maintenance of our highway assets, this report includes transportation 
and safety schemes, developer funded works, Combined Members Grant schemes, and 
planned maintenance of public rights of way. 
 
 

15

Agenda Item No 6

https://www.kent.gov.uk/about-the-council/strategies-and-policies/transport-and-highways-policies/managing-highway-infrastructure
https://www.kent.gov.uk/about-the-council/strategies-and-policies/transport-and-highways-policies/managing-highway-infrastructure


Road, Footway & Cycleway Renewal and Preservation Schemes – see Appendix A 
  
Drainage Repairs & Improvements – see Appendix B 
 
Street Lighting – see Appendix C 
 
Transportation and Safety Schemes – see Appendix D 

• Casualty Reduction Measures 
• Externally Funded Schemes 

 
Developer Funded Works – see Appendix E 
 
Bridge Works – see Appendix F 
 
Traffic Systems – see Appendix G 
 
Combined Members Grant – Member Highway Fund – see Appendix H 
 
Street Works – See Appendix I  
 
Publics Rights of Way – See Appendix J  
 
Conclusion  
 
1. This report is for Members’ information. 
 
Contact Officers: 
 
The following contact officers can be contacted on 03000 418181 
  
Pauline Harmer    Senior Highway Manager East Kent 
Stephanie Wadhams   Dover Highway Manager 
Alan Casson                      Strategic Asset Manager   
Earl Bourner        Drainage Asset Manager 
Helen Rowe    Structures Asset Manager 
Sue Kinsella    Street Light Asset Manager 
Toby Butler    Traffic Operations and Technology Manager 
Jamie Hare    Development Agreements Manager 
Nikola Floodgate   Road Safety and Active Travel Group Manager 
  

 

16



Appendix A – Road, Footway and Cycleway Renewal and Preservation Scheme 
 

The delivery of these schemes is weather dependent; should it prove not possible to carry out these works 
on the planned dates, new dates will be arranged, and the residents will be informed by a letter drop to their 
homes. 

 

Road Asset Renewal Schemes – Contact Officer: Byron Lovell 

Road Name Parish/Town Extent of Works Current Status 

Folkestone Road Dover Approach to roundabout 
junction with York St 

 
Programmed 30th 

January 2023 
 

Priory Rd Dover Approach to pedestrian 
crossing at Norman Street 

Programmed 24th 
January 2023 

 

A258 Deal Road St Margaret’s at Cliffe Station Road to The Animal 
Inn- Kennels 

Programmed 14th 
March 2023 

Road Asset Preservation Schemes - Contact Officer: Jonathan Dean 

Micro Surfacing 

Road Name Parish/Town Extent of Works Current Status 

 
Sandwich Road  

(Holt Street) 
 

Aylesham 
 

From Vicarage Lane to 
Aylesham Road 

 
Complete 

New Dover Road 
 

Capel-Le-Ferne 
 

 
From Battle of Britain 

Memorial to Helena Road 
 

 
Complete 

London Road (River) 
 

Dover 
 

 
From Pilgrims Way to 

London Road Roundabout 
 

 
Complete 

Church Hill 
 

Shepherdswell With 
Coldred 

 

From Eythorne Road to Mill 
Lane 

 

 
Complete 

Lewisham Road 
 

River 
 

 
Minnis Lane to Crabble 

Lane 
 

 
Complete 

 
The Beach 

 

Walmer 
 

 
From Dover Road to 

Granville Road 
 

 
 

Complete 

The Strand Walmer 

 
From The Beach to 

Gladstone Road 
  

Complete 

17



Granville Road 
 
 

St Margaret’s At Cliffe 
 
 

 
From Victoria Avenue to 

Bay Hill 
 

 
Complete 

 
 

Surface Dressing 

Road Name Parish/Town Extent of Works Current Status 

A256 Eastry Bypass 
 Sandwich  Northourne Road to 

Sandwich Road Complete 

Footway/Cycleway Asset Renewal & Preservation Schemes - Contact Officer: Neil Tree 

Road Name Parish/Town Extent of Works Current Status 

Dover Road Sandwich 

 
Footway stabilisation works. 
East footway between the 

level crossing and St. Bart’s 
Road 

 

 
Designed and to be 

programmed. 
 

A257 Canterbury Road Wingham 

 
Bank stabilisation and 

highway remedial works at 
Wingham Bridge. 

 

Completed 
 

Queens Avenue Dover 

 
Footway Reconstruction 

Full Extent 
 

Completed 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

18



Appendix B – Drainage Repairs & Improvements 
 

Drainage Repairs & Improvements - Contact Officer Earl Bourner 
  

Road Name Parish / Town Description of Works Current Status 

Upper Road St. Margarets 

Flooding issues. Existing 
system cleaned and 

inspected but continues to 
be overwhelmed in very 

heavy rainfall. 

Trial holes to locate services carried 
out in October 2022 to inform design. 

Results received, design work to 
progress considering the position of 

the services. 

Broadsole Lane West Hougham 
Drainage improvements in 

relation to flooding and 
adjacent pond 

Team leader and engineer to review 
options available then pass job to 
contractor – road closure will be 

required 

London Road River Soakaway cleansing to 
prevent property flooding Works completed 

Hogbrook Hill 
Lane Alkham 

Clearance of sump and 
culvert adjacent to village 

hall 
At design stage with engineer 

St Nicholas 
Close Deal 

Following CCTV survey 
replacement of gully and 

defective pipework required 
At design stage with engineer 

Frederick Road Deal 
Following CCTV survey 

replacement of gully and 
defective pipework required 

At design stage with engineer 

James Hall 
Gardens Walmer 

Following CCTV survey 
replacement of gully and 

defective pipework required 
At design stage with engineer 

Warwick Road Walmer 
Following CCTV survey 

replacement of gully and 
defective pipework required 

At design stage with engineer 

London Road River 
Following cleansing and site 
inspection roots have been 

identified in line 
Root cutting to be arranged 

Station Road St Margarets 
Following cleansing and site 
inspection roots have been 

identified in line 
Root cutting to be arranged 

 

19



Appendix C – Street Lighting - Dover 
 

Structural testing of KCC owned streetlights has identified the following as requiring replacement. A status of 
works completed identifies that the column replacement has been carried out. Programme dates are identified 
for those still requiring replacement. 

 
 

Street Lighting Column Replacement – Contact Officer Sue Kinsella 
 

Road Name Location Description of Works Status 

London Road Dover Replacement of 3 streetlights 
complete with LED Lantern 

Delayed due to engineering 
difficulties -columns have cranked 

root bases 

Old Folkestone Road Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Delayed due to engineering 
difficulties - unable to locate and 

isolate service supply 

South Military Road 
 

Dover 
 

Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

High Speed Road – awaiting road 
space 

Honeywood Parkway 
 

Dover 
 

Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Delayed due to engineering 
difficulties - unable to locate and 

isolate service supply 

Sandwich Bypass Sandwich Replacement of 4 Bollards 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

New Dover Road Dover Replacement of 2 sign lights 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Ramsgate Road Sandwich Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

High Speed Road – awaiting road 
space 

Maynard Road Dover Replacement of 1 sign light 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Old Folkestone Road Dover Replacement of 12 streetlights 
complete with LED Lanterns 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Marine Parade Dover Replacement of 1 Bollard Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Mill Road Deal Replacement of 1 Bollard 
 

Delayed due to engineering 
difficulties - unable to locate and 

isolate service supply 

Crabble Hill Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

Snargate Street Dover Replacement of 2 streetlights 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

Pencester Road Dover Replacement of 2 streetlights 
complete with LED Lantern Works to be completed by Mar 23 

20



Coniston Drive  Aylesham Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

Ullswater Gardens Aylesham Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

Buttermere Gardens Aylesham Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

Northbourne Road Eastry Replacement of 2 streetlights 
complete with LED Lantern 

Road closure applied for - awaiting 
date  

Cherry Lane Eastry Replacement of 2 streetlights 
complete with LED Lantern 

Road closure applied for - awaiting 
date 

Poulders Gardens Sandwich Replacement of 2 streetlights 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Deal Road Sandwich Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Dover Road Sandwich Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Granville Road Deal Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

St Andrews Road Deal Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Sandown Road Deal Replacement of 2 streetlights 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

London Road Deal Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

Middle Deal Road Deal Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Delane Road Deal Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

St Martins Close Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

Durham Hill Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Folkestone Road Dover Replacement of 2 streetlights 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Ladywell Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Chevalier Road Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

Clarendon Place 
 

Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

Clarendon Street Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

21



Clarendon Road 
 

Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Mount Road Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

Oakvale Close Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

Monins Road Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Eaton Road Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

Farthingloe Road Dover Replacement of 3 streetlights 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Hardwicke Road Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

Westbury Crescent Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

Chestnut Road Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

Underdown Road Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

London Road Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Oswald Road Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

The Abbots Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

Lowther Road Dover Replacement of 3 streetlights 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

Granville Street Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

Anselm Road Dover Replacement of 2 streetlights 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

Hewitt Road Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

North Road Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Park Avenue Dover Replacement of 2 streetlights 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Wyndham Road Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

Bridge Street Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

East Street Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

South Road Dover Replacement of 2 streetlights 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

Noahs Ark Road Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

22



Odo Road Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

Park Street Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Maison Dieu Place Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern  Works Completed 

Wood Street Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

Templar Street Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

Stembrook Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Godwyne Road Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

Castle Avenue Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

Castle Hill Road Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Sheridan Road Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

Weavers Way Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

Rokesley Road Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Peverell Road Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Stanhope Road Dover Replacement of 4 streetlights 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

Nightingale Road Dover Replacement of 3 streetlights 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

Dunedin Drive Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern Works Completed 

New Dover Road Capel Replacement of 3 streetlights 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by 
December 2023 

Shakespeare Road Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by October 
2023 

London Road Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Shakespeare Road 
 

Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by 
December 2023 

Cattle Market  Sandwich Replacement of 2 Signposts 
complete with LED Sign lights 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

 

23



A256 Eastry Bypass Dover 
Replacement of 2 streetlights, 1 

Signpost complete with LED Sign 
light and one bollard 

High Speed Road – awaiting road 
space 

High Street Eastry Replacement of Signpost 
complete with LED Sign light 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Park Avenue Deal Replacement of Signpost 
complete with LED Sign light 

Works to be completed by 
December 2023 

Honeywood Road Dover Replacement of 3 Signposts 
complete with LED Sign lights 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Strand Street Sandwich Replacement of 1 Signpost 
complete with LED Sign light 

High Speed Road – awaiting road 
space 

London Road Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by 
December 2023 

Beaufoy Road Dover Replacement of Signpost 
complete with LED Sign light 

Works to be completed by 
December 2023 

Roosevelt Road Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by 
December 2023 

Middle Deal Road Deal Replacement of Signpost 
complete with LED Sign light 

Works to be completed by 
December 2023 

London Road Dover Replacement of Bollard Works to be completed by 
December 2023 

Old Charlton Road Dover Replacement of Signpost 
complete with LED Sign light 

Works to be completed by 
December 2023 

Hamilton Road Deal Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Lower Road Dover Replacement of Signpost 
complete with LED Sign light 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Old Folkestone Road Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Cambridge Road Deal Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Folkestone Road Dover Replacement of Signpost 
complete with LED Sign light 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Melbourne Avenue Dover Replacement of Signpost 
complete with LED Sign light 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Castle Hill Road Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

24



St Richards Road Deal Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

St Georges Road Deal Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Tower Hamlets Road Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Eaton Road Dover Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

A257 Ash Bypass Ash Replacement of Signpost 
complete with LED Sign light  

High Speed Road – awaiting road 
space 

Sandwich Bypass 
 

Sandwich Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

High Speed Road – awaiting road 
space 

Ash Bypass 
 

Ash Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Road closure applied for - awaiting 
date provide Date) 

Cornwall Road 
 

Deal Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Kelvedon Road Deal Replacement of 1 streetlight 
complete with LED Lantern 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Alfred Square Deal Replacement of Signpost 
complete with LED Sign light 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Beach Street Deal Replacement of Signpost 
complete with LED Sign light 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

Magdala Road Dover Replacement of Signpost 
complete with LED Sign light 

Works to be completed by March 
2023 

 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
    
     
 
     
 

25



Appendix D – Transportation and Safety Schemes 
 
Casualty Reduction Measures 
 
The Schemes Planning & Delivery team is implementing schemes within Dover District council, 
in order to meet Kent County Council’s strategic targets (for example, addressing traffic 
congestion or improving road safety).  Casualty reduction measures have been identified to 
address a known history of personal injury crashes. Current status correct as of 18/11/22 

 

Local Transport Plan Funded Schemes – Contact Officer: Jennie Watson 

Road Name Description of Works Current Status 

Casualty reduction measures (reactive) –  

   

LTP Schemes  

   
 

 
Externally Funded Schemes 
 
The Schemes Planning & Delivery team is implementing schemes within Dover funded by 
external corporations whilst still meeting Kent County Council’s strategic targets with the road 
network.  
 

Externally Funded Schemes – Contact Officer: Louise Winch 

Road Name Description of 
Works 

Source of  
Funding Current Status 

Adelaide Road & Church 
Hill 

20mph speed 
reduction 

Parish Council Complete. 

The Street, Park View 
Road & Manimon Close  
Goodnestone, and 
Chillenden Village 

20mph speed 
reduction 

Parish Council Goodnestone complete. 

Chillenden – partially 
completed. TRO is sealed  

Pommeus Lane & 
Crooked S Road, Ripple  

Relocation of 
speed limit 
terminals and new 
‘Stop’ junction 

Parish Council Traffic Regulation Order 
consultation complete. 
Awaiting payment from Parish 
to deliver scheme. 

Various roads in 
Eythorne including Pike 
Road 

Parking restrictions Parish Council Partially complete. However, 
due parked foreign lorries, 
site to be revisited. 

Various roads in 
Sandwich 

Parking restrictions Town Council Complete. 

26



Appendix E – Developer Funded Works 

Developer Funded Works (Section 278 Agreement Works) 

Scheme 
location/Project 
number 

Parish Description Current status 

Dover Road, Sandwich  
DO003439 

Sandwich New bell-mouth access into 
private development and new 
footways. 

Highway work completed. 

Colliers Way Junction 
with Cooting Road. 
DO003330 

Aylesham Carriageway & Footway 
improvements. 

Highway works completed. 

Southwall Road, Deal 
DO003440 

Deal Footway improvements.  Highway work completed. 

Gore Lane, Eastry 
DO003097 

Eastry New vehicle entrance into 
development 

278 plans received awaiting 
approval  

Durlock Road, Staple 
DO003436 

Staple New bell-mouth access into 
private development and new 
footways. 

278 agreement in place. 
Highway works are ongoing. 

Market Place (Road 1.4) 
Aylesham Village 
expansion 
DO003034 

Aylesham Amendments to Market 
Square including ben 
widening and additional 
parking areas. 
 

Works completed apart from a 
number of minor street lighting 
issues. 

Dorman Avenue North 
(Road 1.3) Aylesham 
Village expansion works. 
DO003040 

Aylesham New footways, laybys and 
resurfacing of carriageway. 

Works complete, waiting for 
completion of legal 
agreements and commuted 
sums. 

367 Folkestone Road, 
Dover. 
DOO03448 

Dover New vehicle crossings and 
footway. 

Highway work completed. 

KFC A256 Ramsgate 
Road, Sandwich. 
DO003449 

Sandwich New bellmouth entrance.  Highway work completed 

Sandwich Guildhall, New 
Street, Sandwich 
DOO03109 

Sandwich New footway and Bus layby Highway agreement in place. 
Works are ongoing. 

DO003407 Archers 
Court Road. 

Archers Court 
Road, Whitfield 

New school crossing point. Highway Works complete. 

Nursing Home 
Wellington Rd, 
DO003445 

Temple Ewell Amendments to access 278 agreement in place. 
Works ongoing. 

Summerfield Nursery 
Site, Staple. DO003118 

Staple. New bellmouth entrance and 
footway. 

278 application received. 

Old Park Hill Dover Footway works connected Awaiting resurfacing. 

27



DO003011 with S38 development. 
 

Monks Way, Sandwich 
DO003443 

Sandwich 
 

New bellmouth entrance. 278 agreement in place,  

Shemara Farm 
Woodnesbough Rd, 
Eastry DO003442 

Sandwich Carriageway improvements. 278 application received. 
Technical acceptance given. 

Singledge Lane, 
Whitfield 
DO003084 

Dover Pedestrian/footway & 
Carriageway improvements. 

Highway works have been 
completed. 

Cox Hill, Shepherdswell, 
Dover CT15 7NN 
DO003116 

Shepherdswell, New bellmouth entrance and 
footway 

278 application received. 

Cross Road, Walmer Walmer Highway improvements  278 Submission received.  
Grove Road/ 
Stourmouth Road. 
DO003056 

Preston New bell-mouth access into 
private development and new 
footways. 

Works underway. 

Coombe Valley Rd 
Dover DO003115 

Dover  New bell-mouth access into 
private development. 

278 application received. 

Station Road 
DO003039 

Walmer Carriageway surfacing and 
new footway 

S278 agreement in place 
works are ongoing.  

Wingham Well Lane 
junction with B2046  

Wingham Carriageway improvements 
to junction. 

278 Technical acceptance 
given. 

DO003099 
White post farm 

Ash New Bellmouth S278 agreement in place. 
Works are ongoing. 

Sandwich Road, Sholden 
DO003098 

Sholden New bellmouth with footway 
improvements. 

S278 Agreement application 
received. 

Manor View, Lower Road 
Temple Ewell 
DO003441 
 

Temple Ewell New bell-mouth access into 
private development and 
minor alterations to existing 
access. 

278 highway agreement in 
place. Works completed. 

Woodnesborough Road, 
Sandwich. DO003153 

Woodnesborough 
Road. 

Highway improvements 278 agreement in place. Works 
have started. 

Freemen's Way, Deal 
DO003112 

Deal New bell-mouth access into 
private development. 

278 application received. 

Sandwich Road, 
Sholden. 
DO003105 

Deal New bell-mouth access into 
development. 

278 application received. 

Lydden School  
CT15 7LA 
DO003103. 

Lydden New entrance into School 278 agreement in place. Work 
has started on site. 

Leisure centre, 
Honeywood park Ind est. 
DO003111 

Dover Construction of a new leisure 
centre with access roads. 

S278 Agreement issued. 
Works to be completed. 

 

28



Section 38 adoption sites 

DO003097 Gore Street, Eastry New Residential 
Dwellings 

Section 38 application received. 

DO003109 Cross Road, Walmer New Residential 
Dwellings 

Section 38 application received. 

DO003107 Dover Road, Walmer New housing 
development with 
highway 
improvements. 
S38 & 278 
required. 

Section 278 & 38 application 
received. 

DO003108 Former Buckland Hospital at 
Coombe Valley Rd 

New Residential 
Dwellings 

Section 38 application received. 

DO003106 Abercrombie Gardens, Parcel B7. 
Aylesham 

New Residential 
Dwellings 

Section 38 application received. 

DO003090 Napchester Road, Whitfield New Residential 
Dwellings 

Section 38 application received. 

 Abercrombie Garden West. 
Aylesham 

New Residential 
Dwellings 

Section 38 application received. 

DO003004 Old Park Hill, Dover New Residential 
Dwellings 

Still awaiting drawing approval. 

DO003057 Phase1 Whitfield Development 
(Halsbury Homes) Richmond Way 

New Residential 
Dwellings 

Phase 1 Works are underway at 
Richmond Way. Developer is still to 
undertake remedial works. 

DO003438  
 

Central Boulevard connection into 
Doorman Avenue 

New connection 
Road 

Section 38 agreement in place.  

DO003013 
 
 

Aylesham Phase Roads 1.7  and 
1.8 (off Central Boulevard, 
Corminster Avenue,  Sunshine 
Corner Avenue, Suds Street) 

New Residential 
Dwellings 

Works complete. Remedial works 
still required. 

DO003063 Aylesham Phase 1B New Residential 
Dwellings 

Works have started on site. Drawing 
approval has been given. 

DO003082 Singledge Lane, new housing 
development. 

New Residential 
Dwellings 

Developer has started construction 
of road 3. S38 adoption agreement 
is not currently in place. 

DO003292 Former Officers site, Connaught 
Barracks, Dover  Road. Guston 

New Residential 
Dwellings 

Section 38 Technical approval given. 
Works have started on site. 

DO003021 Aylesham Village Expansion 
West (Persimmon Homes) Phase 
1a (off Dorman Avenue North and 
Central Boulevard) 

New Residential 
Dwellings 

Works are on-going. 

DO003153 Woodnesborough Road, 
Sandwich development. 

New Residential 
Dwellings 

The developer has made an 
application for a S38 adoption 
agreement.   

DO003104 Sandwich Road, Sholden New Residential 
Dwellings 

Section 38 application received. 

DO003236 Richmond Park, Dover. Phase 1B New Residential 
Dwellings 

No agreement in place.  

DO003438 Dorman Avenue North connection 
Rd. 

New Residential 
Dwellings 

38 application received. Drawing 
acceptance given. 

29



DO003432 
 
 
 

Chequer Lane, Ash Kent 90 New 
Residential 
Dwellings 

S38 agreement in place. 

Hi.38.104 Sandwich Industrial Estate. 
Phase 1A 

Residential 
Dwellings 

Phase 1 only to be adopted. 
Developer is still working on site and 
further highway works are required. 

DO003433 Canterbury Road, Lydden Entrance to 
surgery 

S38 application made for adoption of 
the road leading to surgery only. It 
does not include the new 
development. 

 
Appendix F – Bridge Works 

 
Bridge Works – Contact Officer Helen Rowe 
 

Road Name Parish Description of Works Current Status 
Sandwich 
Bypass Ash A256 North Poulders Stream Culvert 

(1822) – Culvert lining In design. Planned for 2023 

Salisbury Road Deal Upper Walmer Footbridge (2672) – 
Remedial works In design. Planned for 2023 

 
Appendix G – Traffic Systems 

 
There is a programme of scheduled maintenance to refurbish life expired traffic signal equipment across the 
county based upon age and fault history. The delivery of these schemes is dependent upon school terms 
and holiday periods; local residents, businesses and schools will be informed verbally and by a letter drop 
of the exact dates when known.  

 

Traffic Systems - Contact Officer: Toby Butler  

Location Description of Works Current Status 

A256 Barton Road near Nightingale Road, 
Dover (07-0515) 

Refurbish existing traffic 
signal-controlled crossing 
and convert to near-sided 

pedestrian facilities 

Completed July 2022 

Castle Street near Market Square, Dover 
(07-0634) 

Upgrade of existing 
pedestrian crossing facility 

The crossing work has been 
completed and commissioned 

but the Market Square works are 
still ongoing  

 
 

30



  Appendix H – Combined Members Grant 
 

Combined Members Grant programme update for the Dover District. 
 
The following schemes are those which have been approved for funding by both the relevant 
Member and by the Director of Highways, Transportation & Waste and is up to date as of 14 
November 2022   
 
The details below are for Highway Schemes only and does not detail contributions Members have 
made to other groups such as Parish and District Councils. 
 
Further scheme details are available to Members via their Highway Manager (Stephanie Wadhams)  

 
Oliver Richardson – Dover Town 

S Scheme Status 
  

 
Nigel Collor – Dover Town 

S Scheme Status 
  

 
Steve Manion – Dover North 

Scheme Status 
  

 
David Beany – Dover West 

Scheme Status 
  

 
Trevor Bond – Deal & Walmer 

S Scheme Status 
  

 
Derek Murphy – Deal & Walmer 

S Scheme Status 
  

 
Sue Chandler - Sandwich 

S Scheme Status 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

31



Appendix I – Street Works  
 
Please note that this list is accurate at the time of running the report and is subject 
to cancellations and additions. Report highlighting all works in Dover District that 
require road closures with a duration of 5+ days.  
 
For information on all In-progress and proposed works please visit:  https://one.network/ 

 
 

Road/ Street  Area Promoter Proposed 
start date 

Proposed 
end date  

Description of work Traffic 
management 
type 

St Patricks Close  Deal Southern 
Water  

21/11/22 02/12/22 Deal main laying 
scheme #9 

Road closure  

St David’s Road  Deal Southern 
water 

18/11/22 02/12/22 Deal main laying 
scheme #7 

Road closure 

Mill Lane Nonington Southern 
Gas 
Networks 
PLC 

06/02/23 24/02/23 Abandon 44m of 4"SI 
and Lay 44m of 75mm 
PE LP, Insertion, 
Mains Connections, 2 
x Services 

Road closure  

Vicarage Lane  Nonington  Southern 
Gas 
Networks 
PLC 

06/02/23 24/02/23 Open cut excavations 
for mains connections 
with works to Easole 
Street Road Closures 

Road Closure  

St Patricks Road Deal Southern 
Water  

21/11/22 09/12/22 Deal Main Laying 
scheme #8 

Road Closure  

St Andrew Road  Deal Southern 
Water  

28/11/22 16/12/22 Deal Main Laying 
scheme #10 

Road Closure  

Holt Street Nonington  Southern 
Gas 
Network 
PLC  

11/04/23 26/05/23 Abandon 523m of 8"CI 
and Lay 523m of 
180mm PE LP, Open 
cut & Insertion, Mains 
Connections, 28 
Services 

Road Closure  

Nightingale Lane  Nonington  Southern 
Gas 
Network 
PLC  

11/04/23 02/05/23 Permit for Road 
closure with works to 
Holt Street 

Road Closure  

Butter Street Nonington  Southern 
Gas 
Networks 
PLC  

11/04/23 02/05/23 Open cut excavations 
for mains connections 
with works to Holt 
Street junction 
Closure 

Road Closure  

Kennedy Drive  Walmer BT 17/01/23 18/01/23 Access required to the 
underground structure 
for new fibre 
connection 

Road Closure  

Gore Road  Eastry Southern 
Gas 
Networks 
PLC 

13/02/23 10/03/23 Abandon 196m of 4"SI 
and Lay 196m of 
75mm PE LP, 
Insertion, Mains 
Connections, 30 x 
Services 

Road Closure  

32

https://one.network/


Sandwich Road  Nonington  Southern 
Gas 
Networks 
PLC 

06/03/23 06/04/23 Abandon 285m of 4"SI 
and Lay 285m of 
75mm PE LP, Open 
Cut & Insertion, Mains 
Connections, 8 x 
Services 

Road Closure  

High Street  Deal  Southern 
Water 

03/01/23 05/02/23 No Dig rebenching of 
manhole using man 
entry equipment in 
carriageway tanker on 
site to prevent 
flooding. 

Road Closure  

Woodensborough  Eastry  Southern 
Gas 
Network 
PLC 

03/01/23 10/02/23 Abandon 373m of 8"SI 
and Lay 373m of 
180mm PE LP, Open 
Cut & Insertion, Mains 
Connections, 26 x 
Services 

Road Closure  

Ash Road Sandwich  Southern 
Gas 
Networks 
PLC 

24/07/23 01/09/23 Abandon 68m of 4"SI, 
85m of 4"CI and Lay 
153m of 75mm PE LP, 
Insertion, Mains 
Connections, 27 x 
Services 

Road Closure  

Easole Street  Nonington  Southern 
Gas 
Networks 
PLC 

06/02/23 17/03/23 Abandon 600m of 4"SI 
and Lay 442m of 
90mm PE LP, 158m of 
75mm PE LP, Open 
Cut & Insertion, Mains 
Connections, 54 x 
Services 

Road Closure  

St Mary’s Road  Walmer Southern 
Gas 
Networks 
PLC 

21/11/22 13/01/23 Abandon 163m of 
main and lay 163m of 
125mm PE LP, 17m of 
75mm PE LP, 57m of 
40mm PE LP, Open 
Cut & Insertion, 22 x 
Services.  

Road Closure  

High Street Deal  Southern 
Water 

30/01/23 24/03/23 Deal main Laying High 
Street  

Road Closure  

Upper Street  Tilmanstone  Southern 
Water 

09/01/23 13/01/23 New connection linked 
with 12258984 

Road Closure  

Felderland Lane  Worth Southern 
Water  

09/01/23 13/01/23 Comm pipe replace  Road Closure  

Church Street St 
Mary  

Sandwich  Southern 
Gas 
Networks 
PLC 

16/01/23 20/01/23 Disconnect existing 
services and lay new 
services from F/S 
C/way to site = 4M 
public  

Road Closure  

Chapel Road  Tilmanstone  Southern 
Water  

19/12/22 23/12/22 Replace Stop Tap 
chamber & Repair 
leak on inlet 

Road Closure  

Union Road  Deal  Southern 
Water 

12/12/22 16/12/22 Deal main laying 
scheme #11 

Road Closure  

33



Appendix J – Public Rights of Way  
 

 

Public Rights of Way – Contact Officer – Matthew Fox 

Path No Parish Description of Works Current Status 
ER270 – Between 
Sandwich Road 
and Napchester 
Road 

Whitfield Repair tarmac surface and 
improve drainage on the path 

Works scheduled 

ER38 – Path along 
the white cliffs 

St Margarets England Coast Path from NT 
to Langdon Hole 

Works started due for 
completion by end of Feb 
2023 

ER278 – Near New 
Dover Road 

Hougham Without Badly worn Coast Path Landowner issues 

EE216 - Footpath 
leading off The 
Street 

Woodnesborough Pothole Repair Works Complete  

ER129 – Scotland 
Common 

Temple Ewell Byway repairs approx. 250m 
to infill potholes and irregular 
surface 

Works complete 

 
 
1.         Legal Implications 
 
1.1.1 Not applicable. 

1.2 Financial and Value for Money Considerations 

1.2.1 Not applicable. 

1.3 Risk Assessment 

1.3.1 Not applicable. 

Contacts: Pauline Harmer/Stephanie Wadhams 03000 418181 

34


	Agenda
	3 Declarations of Interest
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 BUS SERVICES
	1.	ORIGIN OF REPORT
	2.	PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	6 HIGHWAYS FORWARD WORKS PROGRAMME 2022/23 AND 2023/24

